IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

SETH	PENALVER,)		
	Appellant,)))			
vs.)		CASE NO.	SC00-1602
STATI	E OF FLORIDA,))			
	Appellee.))		
)			

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

CAREY HAUGHWOUT Public Defender

JEFFREY L. ANDERSON Assistant Public Defender 15th Judicial Circuit of Florida Florida Bar No. 374407 Criminal Justice Building 421 Third Street/6th Floor West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 (561) 355-7600

Attorney for Seth Penalver

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Appellant was the defendant and appellee the prosecution in the Criminal Division of the Circuit Court of the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit, In and For Broward County, Florida. In this brief the parties will be referred to as they appear before this Court.

References to the Record on Appeal will be denoted by a Roman numeral, the symbol "R", and the page number.

References to the Trial Transcript will be denoted by two numbers separated by "/". The first number is the transcript volume number and the second number is the page number of the trial transcript which is consecutively numbered throughout the volumes.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Appellant, Seth Penalver, and Pablo Ibar, were charged by indictment with three counts of premeditated murder in the first degree, one count of robbery, one count of attempted robbery, and one count of burglary IR8-10. A jury trial was held and a mistrial due to a hung jury resulted IXR797. Another jury trial commenced on January 11, 1999. At the close of the State's case, Appellant moved for judgment of acquittal 91/12068. Appellant's motion was denied 91/12086. Appellant was found guilty of each offense as charged XR1825-30. Appellant moved for a new trial IXR1738-60. The motion was denied.

At the penalty phase Appellant proclaimed his innocence and waived presentation of mitigating evidence 110/14707,14710. Appellant's counsel moved for appointment of public counsel

- 1 -

IXR1728-32. The motion was denied IXR1832. The jury's recommendation was unanimous for death. On July 27, 2000, the trial court sentenced Appellant to death on the three counts of murder in the first degree and to life in prison for burglary and robbery, and to 15 years in prison for attempted robbery XR2000.

On July 28,2001, a timely notice of appeal was filed XIR2029-30. This appeal follows.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On June 27, 1994, the bodies of Casimir Sucharski (a/k/a Butch Casey), Sharon Anderson and Marie Rogers were discovered in the residence of Sucharski 42/5242. All three died from gunshot wounds 42/5343.

There was a dramatic change in Sucharski's character a week or two prior to his death 47/5948,5970. He became security conscious 47/5948. He was almost predicting his death 47/5970. The day before his death he was so upset he was ready to cry 49/5948.

Peter Bednarz worked as an assistant manager at Sucharski's club -- Casey's Nickelodeon 46/5916. Bednarz was also one of Sucharski's closet and most trusted friends 47/5986. Sucharski had run ins with his employees at times 46/5933. Sucharski was a very secretive person 47/5962. Even Bednarz did not know Sucharski's real name or where he lived for a year or two 47/5964. Sucharski kept money in his shoe 46/5931. Only a couple of other people including Kristal Fisher, would know where Sucharski lived and that he had money in his boots 47/6005. Bednarz testified that he installed a surveillance camera in Sucharski's residence eight days before Sucharski's death 47/5976. The camera was installed due to Kristal Fisher 47/5977. Sucharski had recently kicked Fisher out of his house 47/5977. Sucharski was concerned because Fisher moved in with someone he suspected to be a drug dealer 47/5978. The drug dealer was 160-170 pounds and approximately 5'9" tall 47/5981. Police never asked Bednarz about the drug dealer in investigating Sucharski's murder 47/5985. Bednarz tried to find Fisher after Sucharski's murder, but she had disappeared 47/5985.

Kristal Fisher testified that she lived with Sucharski for almost two years 57/7494. Three weeks prior to the murder, Sucharski kicked Fisher out of his house 57/7505. Sucharski put a gun to her head that day 58/7693,7695. Sucharski literally threw her clothing out of the house 57/7507. Jewelry was left behind 57/7508. Fisher was distraught about Sucharski's death and decided to travel to Thailand, India, Germany and Laos 57/7509. She did not let the police know where to contact her 57/7535. Fisher knew she was a suspect and that no one knew how to find her 58/7658-59. Fisher also testified that the police could have found her if they had asked Terry Franks 58/7641.

The video surveillance camera that Bednarz had installed recorded the killing of Sucharski, Anderson and Rogers. The videotape was introduced into evidence as State's Exhibit Number 2. The videotape shows that two intruders entered the residence at 7:18 a.m. and left the residence at 7:40 a.m. 51/6643-44.

The videotape showed the following: A male and two females were in the residence. Two disguised intruders entered the residence. One of the intruders was dressed in white and had something covering his face and head and the other intruder wore a cap and sunglasses. Throughout the video the intruder dressed in intruder constantly moved about the residence and would return to where the victims and the other intruder were located. At one point, Sucharski's pockets were searched and his boots were removed. At another point, the intruder dressed in white cleared a shelf by swiping the objects with his hand. The intruder then appeared to throw an object at Sucharski. Toward the end of the intrusion, the intruder in white braced himself on a table with his hand. The intruder then began vigorously wiping the area of the table where his hand touched. The victims were then shot. The intruder in white then walked out of the camera's view. He returned and removed his disquise. The intruders left the residence at 7:40 a.m.

Firearm examiner, Carl Haemmerle, testified that the weapon in the video looked like a Tech-9 or K.G. product 46/5866.

The police went through the house for two days 44/5526. Certain areas of the house were ransacked while other areas were undisturbed 44/5525. The intruders left valuable looking jewelry behind, including some diamonds and gold 44/5525,5517. There were three safes in the house 44/5482. A black lockbox had a bullet strike on its surface 41/5132-33. It could not be determined whether the intruders got what they were after 44/5525;53/6978.

- 4 -

Inside the house live and spent .9 mm and .380 casings were found 44/5484. A shoe print impression in blood of one of the intruders was found 43/5397. There was also a patent foot impression in the carpeting 44/5494. A mask was found outside at the edge of the property 43/5414;44/5494. A blue T-shirt with trace evidence was found outside 43/5356;44/5500.

The police took a frame from the videotape and produced a flyer which was sent out to police agencies 48/6170. (State's Exhibit 128) 48/6172.

Approximately three weeks later, the police received a call from the Metro-Dade Police Department stating that they had someone in custody who looked like the person in the flyer 48/6189. Pablo Ibar, Alberto Rincon and Alex Hernandez had been arrested for a home invasion robbery 48/6190;52/6722.

Detective Paul Manzella talked to Pablo Ibar. Ibar said he was with a girl named Latisha and a friend named John Klimeczko on June 26, 1994. Ibar eventually went home and did not wake up until Monday, June 27 52/6732. Manzella took the shoes of Pablo Ibar, Alberto Rincon and Alex Hernandez because a bloody shoe imprint had been left at Sucharski's house 52/6766. There were others suspected of the Sucharski murder, but due to Ibar, the investigation of others was dropped prior to its conclusion 53/7000-01. Manzella testified that Appellant became a suspect after showing the flyers to Jean Klimeczko.

Gary Foy testified that he lived six houses from Sucharski 47/6023. Foy left his house on Sunday morning at 7:00 a.m., or at 7:15 a.m. 47/6025-27, but no later than 7:20 or 7:30 a.m.

- 5 -

47/6030-31. Foy drove past Sucharski's house and saw two men sitting in a Mercedes 600SL 47/6031. Foy knew it was Sucharski's car because it was a convertible Mercedes 47/6032. It was the only car in Sucharski's driveway 47/6033. The Mercedes backed out and traveled behind Foy for 5 or 10 minutes 47/6032,6035.

Foy testified that the passenger had short hair, a scruffy face and wore a white shirt 47/6043. Foy could not identify the driver 47/6062. Foy only knew that the driver had kind of long hair 47/6062. The driver's hair went midway between the top and bottom of his ears 47/6101. The driver's hair touched the back of his shoulders 47/6139. The driver's hair did not run down his back, but it did touch the low part of his shirt collar 47/6139. Foy testified that he picked photo #5 and #1 from a lineup 48/6156. Detective Craig Scarlett testified that Foy said #5 looked like the passenger in the car 48/6196. Photo #5 was a photo of Pablo Ibar 48/6192-94. Scarlett testified that Foy also made reference to #1 48/6196. Appellant's photo was in the lineup, but Foy did not identify him 55/9395.

Melissa Munroe testified that she was Appellant's girlfriend from 1988-1990 and he stayed with her in 1994 after her mom died 59/7822,26. Appellant had short hair 66/8764,8851. Appellant's hair did not go over his ears 66/8765. Appellant drove a maroon Cutlass 59/7827. Munroe had known Pablo Ibar all her life. She did not know that Appellant and Ibar were friends.

At trial, Munroe did not recognize the person in the flyer photo (Exhibit 6-X) from the videotape 63/8445.

In front of the grand jury, Munroe testified that one photo looked like Pablo Ibar and another photo looked like Appellant 63/8453,8457. Munroe testified that she was not identifying anyone and said that she signed the photos because she was asked to 63/8459-62. The person with the glasses and hat could have been anyone 63/8460,8462;66/8836-37. Munroe was asked to sign both photographs and she complied 63/8459.

Munroe testified that on August 4, 1994, she was shown photos by the police at 4:00 a.m. 63/8470,8475. Munroe told the police that she did not know who was in the photos 63/8465. The police wanted Munroe to say it was Appellant and Ibar in the photos and kept asking the same questions over and over 63/8486. Police asked Munroe which photo resembled Ibar and which one resembled Appellant 63/8493. Munroe told them there was no way she could say that the man in the hat was Appellant, but if she was forced to choose she would say one was Pablo Ibar and the other one (in the hat) would then be Appellant 63/8493,8494. Munroe initially told the police that she would not sign the photos, but finally acquiesced because the police said it was no big deal if she signed because it was not an identification 63/8496. Munroe felt pressured into signing the photo 63/8498. Police took a taped statement later that morning at 6:45 a.m. 63/8474. Police told Munroe because she was not making an identification to be short on the tape and not to elaborate Munroe testified that she did not feel the need to 63/8499. explain on tape that she was not identifying anyone because she

had already explained that to police 66/8813. The prosecutor read portions of the taped statement in questioning Munroe:

Q And then the next question was: "Okay. And at that time do you recall being shown two photographs?" And your answer was: "Yes." Correct?

A Uh-huh. Yes.

Q And the next question was: "Okay. And for the record, would you indicate to us what names you placed to the individuals depicted in the photographs?"

And your answer is: "That left photograph is Pablo Ibar and the right photograph is Seth."

A Correct. As they laid the photos down in front of me, that were already signed, that we already went through them, that's why I said the left one is - I had already signed it. We had already went through all of that. And I said that.

* * *

Q Okay. Now, the photographs that we're referring to, that you sighed and dated, that you - in response to that question, those questions, when you responded the left photograph is Pablo Ibar and the right photograph is Seth, are the same photographs in 6-Y; correct?

A Yes, but you're taking that out of context by saying it right there. I know it says it right there, but you have to understand how it is, what's happening.

I already signed the pictures. We were already in the police department, going through all of that.

Like I said, I didn't realize, I thought they were doing like a summary of what we had discussed.

I didn't feel I had to go into all the details, when he asked me this question right here, okay, "and, for the record, would you indicate to us what names you placed on them."

63/8503-04.

Munroe's testimony at an August 31, 1994, hearing was read into

evidence as follows:

"Question: And did you that night on August $4^{\rm th}$ make an identification?"

"Answer: So-to-speak I said that it resembles them. And they had me put my name on the back and I told them that I was not identifying the pictures. And they said because you said it looks like it, can you please put your name on the back."

* * *

"Question: And who did you tell the police that the photographs looked like?"

"Answer: I told them it resembled Pablo Ibar."

"Question: And who did you say the photograph on the right looked like?"

"Answer: I said it resembled Seth."

64/8579-80.

Munroe's testimony from the 1997 trial was read into

evidence as follows:

"Right. You're asking me why I signed - or what was the reason my name is put there. That's the reason, because there was a resemblance and that's how the police said it to me.

"If I would have said anything else, you would have tried to day I - that I wasn't giving you the right information. That's why the name's put on there. That's why they told me to put my name on there, because they had me say it resembled them when they narrowed it down. I don't know how."

64/8593.

Munroe testified that on a Sunday at 5:00 a.m. she saw Appellant at Casey's Nickelodeon 59/7858-61,7864. Appellant wore a nice dress shirt and pants 63/8405. Appellant's shirt was darker than the person's shirt in the video 63/8441. Munroe saw Ibar at another part of the club 59/7863. Munroe did not see Appellant and Ibar together 66/8826. At approximately 2:00 a.m., Appellant was totally intoxicated 66/8824. Appellant asked Munroe if she wanted to go home with him 66/8825. Munroe did not remember on which weekend this occurred except that it was sometime before the murder 59/7874,7903.

Jean Klimeckzo testified that he was a friend of Pablo Ibar. Klimeckzo lived with Ibar at his Lee Street residence in 1994 67/8915. Alberto Rincon and Alex Hernandez also lived there 67/8912. Klimeckzo met Appellant through acquaintances 67/8910.

Klimeckzo testified that he did not remember seeing Appellant or Ibar on the weekend of the murders 67/8949. Klimeckzo has a general memory of questioning by police and being shown some pictures 67/8949-50. At trial, Klimeckzo did not recognize who was in the photos 71/9408. Klimeckzo's memory was not refreshed by reading the transcript of the August 31, 1994 hearing 67/8953.

The following from a transcript of the August 31, 1994, hearing came in evidence:

Klimeckzo, Pablo Ibar, Alberto Rincon, Appellant and a group of friends went to Casey's Nickelodeon on June 24, 1994 67/8989. They stayed out until 6:00 a.m. on Saturday morning 67/8990. Then they went to Ibar's house 67/8991. A bunch of people, including Appellant, were in and out of the residence that Saturday 67/8992. Appellant and Ibar went out Saturday night 67/8992-93. They returned approximately 5:00 a.m. 67/8994. Ibar grabbed a Tech-9 and the left 67/8994. Klimeckzo saw Appellant's car and a big black shiny car 67/8998. Ibar and Appellant left 67/8999. They later returned in mid-afternoon 67/9000. They were in Appellant's car 67/9001. Klimeckzo was later questioned about two photos by police 67/9004. Klimeckzo said the photos were of Appellant and Ibar 67/9005.

Additional testimony from the August 31, 1994, hearing was read into evidence: Police came to Klimeckzo's house and showed him photos. A police office thought one of the photographs was of Alex. Klimeckzo apparently told the officer that the photograph was of Seth and not of Alex. Klimeckzo knew that Pablo Ibar and Alex Salazar had been involved in a home invasion robbery in Dade County 68/9096-9104.

Klimeckzo testified that he was probably under the influence of alcohol and a controlled substance when he came to court on August 31 71/9427.

Klimeckzo testified that he remembered police showing him some photographs, but could not remember which photographs he was shown 68/9113. The prosecutor read into evidence police statements showing that Klimeckzo identified Ibar and Appellant 69/9154-55. When Klimeckzo was asked about the photo of the individual with glasses he indicated that one could find a

- 11 -

hundred people who looked like that person 69/9158. In the police statement, Klimeckzo said that Appellant and Ibar pulled up at 7:00 a.m. in a big black car that looked like a detective's car 71/9396-97,9447.

Klimeckzo testified that he does not remember seeing a Tech-9 at the Lee Street location 69/9175. Klimeckzo remembers that the police showed him very different photos from Exhibit 151 70/9299. The police presented him pretty clear photos 70/9299. Klimeckzo was possibly angry with Appellant 70/9311. Klimeckzo admitted that he could have fabricated just because he was angry 71/9339.

Klimeckzo testified that his lack of memory was not to help Appellant. Appellant was never a friend 71/9397. The lack of memory was possibly due to the use of narcotics 71/9348. Klimeckzo told the prosecutor at the preliminary hearing that he was high the Saturday night in question and was doing a lot of drugs 71/9348. Klimeckzo was under the influence 71/9349,9363. Klimeckzo remembers that the photos the police showed him were clearer than any photos he has seen at trial, but admitted that previously he was so high that his perception had nothing to do with the reality of what he was shown 71/9362. Klimeckzo cannot make out who is in the photos now 71/9408.

Detective Manzella testified that Munroe and Klimeckzo identified Appellant and Ibar from the flyer 75/9950,9956.

- 12 -

Ian Milman testified that he lived with Pablo Ibar and Alex Salazar a/k/a Alex Hernandez at the Lee Street address 72/9471, 9477. Alberto Rincon, Jay Taylor and Jean Klimeckzo also spent nights there 72/9474. Milman was introduced to Butch Casey (a/k/a Casimer Sucharski) at Sucharski's club by Pablo Ibar 72/9493. Milman did not think that Ibar really knew Casey because he thought Casey was just being friendly to everybody 72/9498.

Milman testified that police showed him a couple of grainy, shady photographs, but he could not recognize anybody 72/9523-24. Milman signed the photos because he was told to 72/9531. Milman signed the photos for police to show that he had been shown the photos 72/9525. The police kept asking Milman if he recognized anybody in the photos and Milman kept saying that he could not 72/9530-31. Milman was shown the same photographs in court, but does not know who is in the photos 72/9528.

Milman testified that he never made an identification to the Grand Jury 72/9541. Milman could not determine who was in the hat and glasses 72/9544-45. Milman testified that he had seen a Tech-9 in Alex Hernandez' closet at the Lee Street house 72/9553. The Tech-9 was typically locked in Alex's room 73/9715-16.

Milman testified that he came back to the Lee Street house Sunday morning between 6:00 a.m. and 7:00 a.m. 73/9721.

- 13 -

Klimeckzo was tearing everything apart and was running around saying "I need a gun. I need a gun." 72/9586;73/9714. Klimeckzo kept going into Ibar's room 73/9686. Milman passed out and when he awoke Ibar and Jay said Klimeckzo had been kicked out 73/9686.

Robin Rice-Otero testified she has known Appellant since middle school 92/12226. When police discovered that Otero knew Appellant, they asked her if she recognized him in the videotape photo 92/12228-29. Otero was certain that the photos were not of Appellant 92/12228-29. The police asked her repeatedly if she was sure it was not Appellant and she said, "Yes" 92/12228-29.

Dr. Mehmet Iscan was declared an expert in the area of anthropology 95/12658. Iscan teaches facial reconstruction and image analysis 96/12699. Iscan previously investigated the 1987 case of whether a photo of a Nazi was John Damjanjuk and developed a methodology of comparing video images with other photos or person 96/12676. Iscan also wrote a book on human facial identification 96/12677. Iscan took photos and measurements of Appellant and compared them to the images and photos of the man with the hat and glasses in the videotape 96/12688-71;102/13654-55. Because the suspect wore glasses and a hat, only one-half of his face was ever exposed 96/12704. Neither

- 14 -

the eyes nor teeth were visible 97/12881. Also, the quality of the video was bad 97/12798.

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