## SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

## CASE NO. SC00-1602

## SETH PENALVER,

Appellant,

- versus -

## STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

# ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SEVENTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT, IN AND FOR BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

## ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

RICHARD E. DORAN Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

MELANIE ANN DALE Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 0168556 1515 N. Flagler Drive Suite 900 West Palm Beach, Fl 33401

Counsel for Appellee

# **

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

properly argued that the defense has the same subpoena power to call Rincon, Hernandez, or Brian Kinnaman.

E. "Good Citizens", "Owe it to yourselves and the people of this community", "Not a case of lesser included offenses".

Penalver claims that the prosecutor improperly argued that the jury owed it to the community to come back with a guilty verdict and that it was not a case of lesser included offenses. This claim is meritless.

In this case the prosecutor made the following argument:

And now it's time, as good citizens, to be courageous and be just and you owe it to yourselves and the people of this community and I'm sure you will, and I'm simply asking you, based on the law, and based on the evidence and the reasonable inferences that can be drawn, you should return a verdict of guilty as charged to each count. This is not a case of lesser included offenses. It's guilty as charged, as to each count.

(Emphasis added)(T. Vol. 109 p. 14584).

It is apparent that the prosecutor never told the jury that they owed it to the community to find Penalver guilt. Rather, this was proper argument as the prosecutor was merely telling the jury to base their verdict on the law and the evidence as it was presented and that the lesser included offense do not apply to this case. In the instant case, Penalver has failed to show that any of the complained of comments materially contributed to the conviction.

Moreover, should this Court find error, any error is harmless beyond a reasonable doubt as argued in Point I. Hence, the conviction and sentence must be affirmed.

#### POINT X

# THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY ADMITTED KLIMECZKO'S PRIOR TESTIMONY. (RESTATED)

Penalver argues that Klimeczko's former testimony from the adversary preliminary hearing was improperly admitted pursuant to Fla. Stat. Sec. 90.803 (22). Penalver claims that the admission of such testimony violated his rights to confrontation, due process and a fair trial. This claim is meritless.

Primarily, the State would submit that Penalver has misrepresented the trial court findings. In the instant case, the trial court found that the former testimony was admissible pursuant to Fla. Stat. Sec. 90.804 because Klimeczko testified that he could not recall anything and alternatively found that the testimony was admissible pursuant to 803.22 (T. Vol. 67 p. 8956, 8978).

Moreover, the admissibility of evidence is within the sound discretion of the trial court, and the trial court's ruling will not be reversed unless there has been a clear abuse of that discretion. <u>Ray v. State</u>, 755 So. 2d 604, 610 (Fla. 2000); <u>Zack v. State</u>, 753 So. 2d 9, 25 (Fla. 2000); <u>Cole v. State</u>, 701 So. 2d 845 (Fla. 1997); <u>Jent v. State</u>,

408 So. 2d 1024, 1039 (Fla. 1981).

Florida Statutes Section 90.804 states:

(1)DEFINITION OF UNAVAILABILITY. "Unavailability as a witness" means that the declarant:

(a) Is exempted by a ruling of a court on the ground of privilege from testifying concerning the subject matter of his statement;

(b) Persists in refusing to testify concerning the subject matter of his statement despite an order of the court to do so;

(c) Has suffered a lack of memory of the subject matter of his statement so as to destroy his effectiveness as a witness during the trial;

(d) Is unable to be present or to testify at the hearing because of death or because of then existing physical or mental illness or infirmity; or

(e) Is absent from the hearing, and the proponent of his statement has been unable to procure his attendance or testimony by process or other reasonable means.

However, a declarant is not unavailable as a witness if such exemption, refusal, claim of lack of memory, inability to be present, or absence is due to the procurement or wrongdoing of the party who is the proponent of his statement in preventing the witness from attending or testifying.

(Emphasis added).

The burden of showing unavailability is on the party who seeks to use the

testimony. Thompson v. State, 619 So.2d 261 (Fla.), Jackson v. State, 575 So.2d

181, 187 (Fla.1991); Lawrence v. State, 691 So.2d 1068 (Fla. 1997). Moreover, in

Thompson, 619 So.2d at 265 (Fla.1993), this Court held that where a party intends to

admit former testimony of a witness, the confrontation clause requires that the party against whom the testimony is admitted "have an opportunity at the prior proceeding to cross-examine the witness". If the party challenging the admission of former testimony had the opportunity to cross-examine the witness, there is no confrontation clause violation. Id.; See Happ v. Moore,784 So.2d 1091, 1100-1101 (Fla. 2001)( finding that where entire transcript of former testimony was read into the record, including the cross-examination, there is no confrontation clause violation, and no abuse of discretion by the trial court).

In the case at bar, Penalver has failed to show that the trial court abused it's discretion when it admitted Klimeczko's former testimony. Direct examination by the State established that Klimeczko could not recall any of his prior statements, to the police, about the night the crimes occurred, nor could he recall anything he had previously testified about (T. Vol. 67 pp. 8948-8955). The trial court found that Klimeczko suffered from a loss of memory therefore, the former testimony was admissible pursuant to 90.804 and alternatively found the prior testimony under 90.803 (22) (T. Vol. 67 p. 8956, 8978).

Additionally, the entire direct and cross examination of Klimeczko was read into the record (T. Vol. 67 pp. 8957, 8981- 9011, Vol. 68 9087-9108). The record reflects that Penalver had not only the right to cross-examination, but he exercised that right in the prior proceeding. Klimeczko was under oath and subject to the penalty of perjury at the Adversary Preliminary hearing. Hence, in this case, Penalver had made absolutely no showing that the trial court abused it's discretion by admitting the former testimony.

Alternatively, the trial court found that Klimeczko's former testimony was admissible pursuant to Fla. Stat. Sec. 90.803(22). Florida Statute section 90.803(22) states as follows:

(22) Former testimony.--Former testimony given by the declarant which testimony was given as a witness at another hearing of the same or a different proceeding, or in a deposition taken in compliance with law in the course of the same or another proceeding, if the party against whom the testimony is now offered, or, in a civil action or proceeding, a predecessor in interest, or a person with a similar interest, had an opportunity and similar motive to develop the testimony by direct, cross, or redirect examination; provided, however, the court finds that the testimony is not inadmissible pursuant to s. 90.402 or s. 90.403.

Moreover, should this court find that the testimony was inadmissable under Fla.

Stat. Section 90.803 (22) such error is harmless because the testimony properly came in under Fla. State section 90.804 because Klimeczko was unavailable due to lack of memory. Lastly, should this court find that the trial court committed error by admitting the testimony, such error is harmless as argued in point I. Therefore, the conviction and sentence must be affirmed

#### POINT XI

THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY ADMITTED TESTIMONY THAT MELISSA MUNROE AND JEAN KLIMECZKO IDENTIFIED PENALVER IN THE PHOTO TAKEN FROM THE VIDEOTAPE. (RESTATED).

Penalver claims that the prosecutor improperly used the out-of-court statements of Munroe and Klimeczko as proof that Penalver was the person in the photos which were presented into evidence. Penalver argues that such evidence is improper opinion testimony, inadmissible and not governed by Fla. Stat. Sec. 90.801<sup>2</sup>. These claims are meritless as the testimony was admissible as non-hearsay pursuant to Florida Statutes section 90.801 (2)(a).

Primarily, Penalver's claims are not properly before this court. Below, Penalver never objected when the testimony regarding the photo identifications was presented (T. Vol. 63 pp. 8455, Vol. 67 pp. 9004-9005). It is well established that for an issue to be preserved for appeal, it must be presented to the lower court and "the specific legal argument or ground to be argued on appeal must be part of that presentation if it is to be considered preserved." <u>Archer v. State</u>, 613 So. 2d 446 (Fla. 1993) (quoting

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Although Penalver seems to claim that this testimony was admitted pursuant to Fla. Stat. Sec. 90.801 92)(c), the record reflects that the State pointed out to the trial court that the prior testimony was admissible under Fla. Stat. Sec. 90.801 (2)(a) as substantive evidence (T. Vol. 70 p. 9250).

<u>Tillman v. State</u>, 471 So. 2d 32, 35 (Fla. 1985)). <u>See also, Steinhorst v. State</u>, 412 So. 2d 332, 338 (Fla. 1982). Therefore, these claims are not properly before this court as they have not been preserved.

Moreover, the admissibility of evidence is within the sound discretion of the trial court, and the trial court's ruling will not be reversed unless there has been a clear abuse of that discretion. <u>Ray v. State</u>, 755 So. 2d 604, 610 (Fla. 2000); <u>Zack v. State</u>, 753 So. 2d 9, 25 (Fla. 2000); <u>Cole v. State</u>, 701 So. 2d 845 (Fla. 1997); <u>Jent v. State</u>, 408 So. 2d 1024, 1039 (Fla. 1981).

Moreover, Florida Statutes Section 90.801(2) states:

(2) A statement is not hearsay if the declarant testifies at the trial or hearing and is subject to cross examination concerning the statement and the statement is ;
(a) Inconsistent with the declarant's testimony and was given under oath subject to the penalty of perjury at a trial, hearing or other proceeding or in a deposition.
(b) Consistent with the declarant's testimony and is offered to rebut an express or implied charge against the declarant of improper influence, motive, or recent fabrication; or
(c) One of identification of a person made after perceiving the person.

#### A) Testimony of Melissa Munroe.

The trial court properly allowed the Grand Jury testimony of Munroe to be read into the record as it is not hearsay because it is inconsistent with the testimony she gave at trial. Fla. Stat. Sec. 90.801(2)(a). Furthermore, in <u>Ellis v. State</u>, 622 So.2d 991, 997 (Fla. 1993) <u>citing United States v. Distler</u>, 671 F.2d 954 (6th Cir. 1981), this Court found that within the hearsay exception for prior inconsistent statements made by a declarant subject to the penalty of perjury at trial, hearing or other proceeding, or in a deposition, the term "other proceeding" encompasses grand jury hearings.

In the instant case, at trial Melissa Munroe testified that she did not recognize the person in the photo that was shown to her, and stated that she was never able to identify the photo (T. Vol. 66 pp. 8444-8446, 8454). Munroe also testified that the photo does not look like Seth Penalver (T. Vol. 66 p. 8468). Hence, the State was properly permitted to read the grand jury testimony from August 25, 1994, wherein Munroe was subject to cross-examination and under oath subject to the penalty of perjury. At the Grand Jury Munroe testified that the pictures looked like Seth Penalver and Pablo Ibar, which is inconsistent with her trial testimony (T. Vol. 66 pp. 8456-8458, 8462). The State also read the portion of the testimony where Munroe explained that she only identified the photos because the police told her to and that she was not identifying Penalver and the picture could be anybody (T. Vol. 66 pp. 8461-8462). In this case, Penalver has failed to demonstrate that the trial court abused it's discretion. Rather, it is apparent from the record that the Grand Jury testimony was properly read into the record pursuant to Fla. Stat. Sec. 90.801(2)(a).

Alternatively, should this court find error as argued in point I any error is harmless. Hence the conviction and sentence must be affirmed.

#### B. Testimony of Jean Klimeczko.

Primarily, the State relies upon the argument made in point X as Klimeczko's testimony from the Adversary Preliminary hearing was properly introduced pursuant to Fla. Stat. Sec. 90.804, because the trial court found that he was unavailable, and alternatively under Fla. Stat. Sec. 90.803 (22). Additionally, the testimony was admissible as it is not hearsay pursuant to Fla. Stat. Sec. 90.801(2)(a), because it is inconsistent with the testimony he gave at trial.

At trial in the instant case Klimeczko testified that he could not recall any of his prior statements to police, nor could he recall any prior sworn testimony he had given in this case (T. Vol. 67 pp. 8948-8955). Moreover, at the Adversary Preliminary Hearing that was read into the record, Klimeczko was subject to cross-examination, and under oath subject to the penalty of perjury (T. Vol. 67 pp. 8982-9009, Vol. 68 pp. 9096-9149, Vol. 69 pp. 9152-9180, Vol. 70 pp. 9260-9330, Vol. 71 pp. 9338-9454). At that hearing, Klimeczko identified Pablo Ibar and Seth Penalver in photographs he was shown (T. Vol. 67 p. 9005). Therefore, it is apparent from the record that Klimeczko's trial testimony was inconsistent with the prior testimony he gave at the Adversary Preliminary Hearing. Hence, Penalver has failed to prove that

the trial court abused it's discretion and the conviction and sentence must be affirmed. Lastly, should this court find error, such error is harmless as argued in Point I.

#### POINT XII

THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY EXCLUDED THE AUDIOTAPE OF THE CONVERSATION BETWEEN CASEY SUCHARSKI AND KRISTAL FISHER. (RESTATED).

Penalver claims that the trial court improperly excluded the tape recording of the conversation between Casimir Sucharski and Kristal Fisher. This claim is meritless because Kristal Fisher did not consent to the conversation being recorded. Moreover, any error is harmless as Penalver was permitted to impeach Fisher with the tape.

The admissibility of evidence is within the sound discretion of the trial court, and the trial court's ruling will not be reversed unless there has been a clear abuse of that discretion. <u>Ray v. State</u>, 755 So. 2d 604, 610 (Fla. 2000); <u>Zack v. State</u>, 753 So. 2d 9, 25 (Fla. 2000); <u>Cole v. State</u>, 701 So. 2d 845 (Fla. 1997); <u>Jent v. State</u>, 408 So. 2d 1024, 1039 (Fla. 1981).

Moreover, Fla. Stat. Sec. 934.03(2)(c), permits a warrantless interception of oral communications where one of the parties to the communication has given prior consent to the interception and the purpose of the interception is to obtain evidence of a criminal act. <u>See Tollett v. State</u>, 272 So.2d 490 (Fla.1973), *receded from on* 

other grounds State v. Welker, 536 So.2d 1017, 1020 (Fla.1988); Waters v. State, 444 So.2d 1135 (Fla. 2d DCA 1984).

In this case, Detective Manzella testified that through his investigation he determined that Kristal Fisher was unaware that the recording had been made (T. Vol. 53 p. 7021). Hence, the tape was inadmissible because Fisher did not consent to the recording.

Additionally, any error in not playing the tape for the jury was harmless because Defense counsel was permitted to impeach Fisher with the contents of the recording (T. Vol. 58 pp. 7700), Defense counsel was able to establish from the recording that Fisher had not picked up all of her belongings and that she and Casimir Sucharski were arguing about when she would be able to get the rest of her belongings, which included clothing and jewelry (T. Vol. 58 pp. 7700-7720). Hence, the conviction and sentence must be affirmed.

#### POINT XIII

### THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY ADMITTED JEAN KLIMECZKO'S PRIOR TESTIMONY. (RESTATED).

Penalver argues that the cross examination from the adversary preliminary hearing should not have been admitted as evidence. Penalver has repeated the arguments made in point XI. For purposes of clarity the State relies on the argument

as set forth in point XI. Additionally, Penalver claims that an Adversarial Preliminary Hearing is different from the final trial and the cross examination should not have been introduced. Such a claim is meritless as the Adversary Preliminary Hearing was properly admitted as former testimony. The Supreme Court, in Ohio v. Roberts, 448 U.S. 56, 100 S.Ct. 2531, 65 L.Ed.2d 597 (1980), explained that when witness was unavailable for the trial yet witness appeared at a preliminary hearing and was cross-examined confrontation clause is not violated. Additionally, the court in United States v. Owens, 484 U.S. 554 (1988), held that the confrontation clause guarantees only an opportunity for effective cross-examination, not cross-examination in whatever way the defendant might wish. Hence, the former testimony was properly admitted. Moreover, any error was harmless because the testimony was cumulative to Klimeczko's identification on direct examination during the Adversary Preliminary Hearing. Hence, the conviction and sentence must be affirmed.

#### POINT XIV

### THE EVIDENCE PRESENTED WAS SUFFICIENT FOR CONVICTION. (RESTATED)

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